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~ SCUTH STREET SEAPORT HISTORIC DISTRICT EXTENSION, Borough of Manhattan.

BOUNDARIES

Thepropertybcundedbyalmebegmnmgatthesoutheastcomerofthe
intersection of Pearl Street and Dover Street, extendirng easterly along the
southerm curb line of Dover Street, scutherly along the middle of Water
Street, westerly along the middle of Peck Slip, northerly across Peck Slip
to the eastern curb line of Pearl Street, an:lmrtherlyalongtheeastem
curb line of Pearl Street to the point of beginning.

TESTIMONY AT PUBLIC HEARING
On December 1, 1987 the landmarks Preservation Commission held a public

hearing on the proposed designation of the South- Street  Seaport Historie . - - —

District Extension (Item No. 2). The hearing had been duly advertised in
accordance with the provisions of law. Thirty witnesses spoke in favor of
designation. Eight witnesses spoke in opposition to designation. One
speaker took no position. The Commission has received many letters and
other expressions of support in favor of this designaticn.. One letter has

' been reczived opposing designation. '

DES (0] ST

Summary

The Scuth Street Seaport Historic District Extension consists of the block
bounded by Pear]l Street, Water Street, Peck Slip and Dover Street. It is an
intrinsic part of an historic area that records the growth and evolution of
a section of the city from a small cluster of wharves in the mid-13th
century to an important part of the leading port of the mation in the mid-
19th century. The South Strest Seaport Historic District and its Extension
are important reminders of the rise of New York City as an international
center of commerce. With one exception, the buildings within the Extension
span the 19th century from the early 1820s to the mid-1880s, the pericd of
the area’s greatest growth and development. The buildings are straight-
forward, utilitarian 'structures reflecting the original uses of the
buildings as warehouses, lofts and commercial storage spaces. The block was
included within the bourdaries of the Scuth Street Seaport Historic District
as heard by the Landmarks Preservation Commission in 1576 and designated in
May, 1977. Subsequent to designation (July, 1977}, the boundaries of the
Historic District were modified by the Board of Estimate to exclude the
block. The South Street Seaport Historic District including this block is
listed on the State and National Registers of Historic Places.



of the South t Sea i ic Di ict ensic

Froem the first settlement of Manhattan by the Dutch, the East River
shoreline of the island was recognized as the natural wooring site for
ships. It was safer to land there than to attenpt the more treachercus
western shore of the island along the Hudson, and the narrowness of the East
River also provided a more sheltered mooring for the small ships of the 17th
century. The Dutch also began reshaping the shoreline of the island by
means of landfill, a practice continued over the centuries to the present
day. Pearl Street marks the original shoreline and its name is derived from
the myriad of pearly oyster shells which washed ashore. The intersection of
Pearl Street with Dover Street (within the Extension) is the landing site of
the first ferry between Manhattan and Brooklyn which was established in
1638. Water Street and Front Street were created by landfill in the 18th
century, ard South Street was created in 1810.  Peck Slip, named for
Benjamin Peck, was one of the principal wharves in the ¢ity in the late 18th
century until it was filled in at the time of the creation of Scuth Street.

The harbor, from its early development, provided an important source of
reverme for the city. The shipping trade, both coastal and trans-Atlantic,
thrived cduring the 18th century. A number of New York merchant families
historically connected with the South Street Seaport Historic District and
the Extension, such as the Schermerhorns, the Beekmans and the Waltons,
accumulated great wealth from the shipping trade. William Walton whose
mansion stood on Pearl Street between Peck Slip and Dover Street (on a site
within the Historic District Extension) made a fortune from the coastal
trade, enjoying an almost exclusive contract with the Spanish in St.
Aucustine, Florida. The house, erected in 1752, was built of Holland brick -
with a 50 foot fromtage along Pearl Street and stood three stories high with
a dormered pitched roof. It was ornamented with brownstone watertables and
lintels and the central entrance was crowned by the Walton family crest.
Its roofline was enhanced by balustrades and its interior by handsome carved
mahogany (illus. 1). At the rear of the property on the East River was the
Walton deck. Walton died without issue ard left the mansion to his nephew,
also named William, who had married Mary Delancey, a member of one of the
most influential families in the colony. The nephew was one of the founders
of the Chamber of Ccmnerce and active in a mumber of pre-Revoluticnary
activities in the city.3 It was in this house that the daughter of Governor
Clinton married Edmond Charles Genet, lmown in American history as Citizen
Genet, a controversial figure in the early days of the Republic. The house
was the first headquarters for the Bank of New VYork. Later, it was
converted for commercial purpcses as the nature of the area changed and, for
a tirme kefore its demolition in 1831, .l.t served as a warehouse and a section
of it as a lodging house for mm.grants

During the Revolution, while New York was occupied by the British, the
harbor lost most of its demestic trade. After the war, New York’s
traditional trading links with Britain were cut forcing its merchants to
seek new markets. One endeavor was the opening up of trade with the Crient.
By the end of the century, Britain, having normalized relations with this
countxyy, chose New York as the centar for its exports. Ancther significant
factor that added impetus to the rise of the New York port as -a leading
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cammercial center was the fournding of the packet lines in 1818, Thesa
squarz-rigged liners sailed from- South Street just below Peck Slip ard wars
the first vessels to establish regqular service between New Yc:c and
Liverpool and other Eurcpean ports. The cpenirg of the Erie Canal in 1325
also increased the city’s commercial significance by making it the fecal
point for the export of Aravican agricultural product'.s ard for the import of
foreign gcods to be shipped hack alorg the Canal to the Midwest. In the
184Cs, the packet lines were replaced by speedier clirper ships and these,
in twrn, by steamships, all of which were instrumental in securing New
York’s pesition in world trade.

During the 19th century, the port of Mew York was famous as the center
for shiphuilding in this country. The traditional locaticn for this
industry was north of the Historic District and Extensicn and north of the
present site <f the Breoklyn Bridge along both the Manhattan and Brooklyn
shorelines of the East River. New York’s shipyards produced America’s
memhantnavyi.nthelsmcenmryarﬁ as a center for shirbuilding, wes
rivalled only by the Clyde in Scotlard.

The buildings in the Historic District and the Fxtansion hcused
businesses irvolved in shipping, trade, ard related activities., FPear)
Street was the center for the dry gecds trade, making the area a kurgeonirg
mercantile district with many of the buildirgs providing storage space for
goods in trensit. Thev also provided office space for the cammissicn
rerchants who served as middle men ketween the merchants proper and the
brokers for trade geods. The &area also beasted rmeny hotels, beardirg
houses, ard taverns catering to the businessien, seaman ard immigiants who
poured into the area during the mid-19th centby.

The 185Cs was the deczde when the East River port was at its peak as a
shipping center. After this pericd, the clipper ships ware eclirsed by the
advent of steamships. Their greater size demanded deerer berths and wicder
maneuverirg sgace which the Kudson provided. The expansion of the railroads
and the cpening of the Panama Railway reduced demand for scme shipping and
with the rapid growth of the city, the comwrercial canter moved northwartc.
Yet the area continued to serve as an impeortant transportatien hub for the
city. ‘The lten Ferryv which comnscted Pulton Street in Manhattan with
Fulton Street in Breoklyn caxried millicns of cammutars each year., Other
najor ferries and steamers to Connecticut and Massachusetts as well as
Eastern Long Islard landed at the piers alerg the Historic District bringirg
theusands of travellers to the area. As shipping roved cut of the axea,
businesses catering to the domestic travellsr ard others related to the .
seafecd irdustry filled the empty warshousas. Tne Fulton Market Fishmongers
Asscciation, crganized in the 1860s, was an iwportant instituticn in the
area. The fish market continues to function teday and its activity has
contrikbutad to the swrvival of the charactar of the Historic District ard
the Extension. State ard Municipal authorities ard the South Stresi Seaper:
Musatm, fourded in 1567, have kesen hignly instrumental in the presewvatien:
ard rehabjlitation of d‘lﬂ area. The work of the Reuse organization, c¢n
Fulton Street, has stimulated new construction, restoration, ard.
ravitalization in the larger area. Teday, the Scuth Strest Sszror:



Hlstor:.c District, with the Extension, is ore of the City’s major teurist
attractions. : : _ ‘

The buildings of the Scuth Strzet Seaport Historic District ard
Extension span a pericd of almest 200 yéars and are represantative of
several. different styles of mercantile architecture; thesa in the
Extension,in particular, represent styles popular during the 19th century
including the Federal, Greek Revival, Italianate, and the Romanesque
Revival.  Quite simple in overall design, few of the stores and warehouses
of the seaport area were the work of professional axrchitects. Generally,
these commercial structurss were designed by builders.

The earliest tuildings in the District amd the Extension served as koth
house ard store and were designed in a simple vernacular style. Built in
the 1790s, the Rcse House at 273 Water Street cpposite the Extension, is one
of the faw remaining examples of this type. in the District. The hcuse-store .
“type was ceonstructed throughout the early decades of the 18th centwry and
had a planar brick facade with narrow proporticns and sinple brownstcre
decorative detail displayirg some features of the Federal style. later in -
the century, this building type was generally converted to boarding hcuse
- use, Within the Extensicn, 268 Water Street is. an example of this type.
Erected in 1823-24 for Ezra Hoyt, it exhibits the domestic scale of the
early commercial buildings. Hoyt used the building for the manufacture of
stoves and may have reserved the upper floors for residences. The ground
floor was altered in the mid-19th century with the installatjon of a cast-
iren storefront, a frequent method of '"modernizing” a structure. .

Beginning in the late 1820s, the popularity of the grard Greek Revival
style swept Arerica ard the style was readily adapted to a commercial
formula which characterizes many of the buildings in ‘the Historic District
ard the Zxtension. The noted New York architect Tthiel Town was the first to
design a commercial stxucture in the Greek Revival in 1829 ard it served as
the prototype for New York City warenhcuses for the next twenty years. The
great fire of 1835 in lower Manhattan crzatsed a tremendous need for new
buildirgs and, soon after the fire, trebeated granite Gresek Revival shops
ard warsncuses bkegan to - line the strests of the Historic Distvict ard
Extension. Granite was used for the merolithic grourd-flcor piars, generally
with simple Tuscan capitals, ard for the window lintels at the brick upper
flcors. The range of granite piers is the hallmark of the Greek Revival
camrercial style. The building at 270 Water Strest within the Extension is

of this type.

The later 1l9th-century uildirgs of the Histeric District and Extensicn
ars not as nurerous as those erected when the area was the canter of tha
. snipoi.ng irdustry. Nenetheless, warziouse construction continuad ungil the

cpening of the Brooklyn Bridge. Cast iron was a pepular tuilding raterial
aftar the mid-19th century and warks an advance in 19th—century kuilding
tachnology. Many of the earlier Gresk Pevival storefronts wers ramcdelisd
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with the more up-to-date cast ircn. The 1868 warzhouse at 213-215 Water
Street in the Historic District is a fire example of the Italianate style in
marble and cast iren. The twin warchouses at 272-274 Water Stveet in the
Extensicn have Italianate details. The Romanesque Revival is represented by
George B. Post’s striking buildirg of 1885 on Beekman Street in the Historic
Pistrict. Within the Extansion, 324-328 and 330 Pearl Street have
Romaresque-inspired details. These are the oldest surviving buildings cn
Pear]l Street within the Historic District and the Extension. The contrast
between these later buildirngs ancd those of the Federal and Greek Revival
period provide the District and Extension with a diversified architectural
¢character. The Peck SI.:Lp Post Office is a mid-20th century building in the.
Extension.

The Extension to the South Street Seaport Historic District contains
buildings erected during the same period, for the same purpese, in the sare
height and scale, and with the same materials as those within the District,
and they share a common history and development pattern. Strsets paved with
Belgian block (Peck Slip and Watsr Street, which were originally paved with
cobblestones) further enhance the character of the Extension and are also

found within the Historic District... The Extension’s. integrity with. the. .

District is reinforced'by the clear and distinct boundaries formed by the
Southbridge apartment camplex on its west and by the Brooklyn Bridge on its
noxth. As seen from the Erocoklyn Bridge, the Extension is an
indistinguishable part of the fabric of the South Street Seaport Historic
District. The Extension enriches the District historically, contrilutes to
its architectural c¢haracter,and insures it gecgraphic cchesiveness.



DESCRIPTION®

SOUTH SIDE ONLY ,
0. 2-14. ([Tax Map Bleck 106, Lot 22 in part]

The south side of Dover Street is occupied by a narrow, ixregularly-
shaped vacant lot. : :

PEARL, STREET between Peck Slip ard Dover Straet.
EAST SIDE ONLY

No. 32IQ (260-262 Water Street). (Tax Map Block 106, ot 19)
This building is de;c:rj.bed urder 1-19 Peck Slip.

No. 322. [Tax Map Bleck 105, Lot 17]

| This site is now a parking lot.-

No. 324-328. [Tax Map Block 106, Lot 18]

On the site of 326-328 Peaxl Street, which was cnce Franklin Squars,
stoed cne of the most famous and hardscme early huildings in the environs of
the seaport. Built in 1752, the building was an elegant Georgian heuse
cwned by the merchant William Walton, whose portrait by Themas Wollasten
hangs in the New-York Historical Sccisty. .

The brick warehcuses now standing at No. 324-325 was erected in 1881-32
frem the designs of architect William Kuhler. - Cwrned by James Callery, the
building originally housed a stors on the first floor with a factory above.
In 1888, a printing house ccoupied the buildirg. Portions of the ground
flcers have been altered with medern brick inful and windew sash but the
harndsome panelsd cast-ircn square colums of the original storefronts
rerain. They were produced at the Westing & gaftrers Iron Works. A metzl
band has bheen placed kelow the second-story wirdews in par: of the cornice.
The farestration at the four upper stories varies slightly. In the middle
section the windows are of the same height kut paired, contrasting subtly
with the other single windcws of the facade. All the wirdews are square-
headed with one-gver-crie deuble~hung rmecal replacament sash. The mest
ormate feaature of the puilding is the Romanesgue~inspired corbeled brick
roof cornice, omarented with a fanciful gecwetric pattern. The exposed
scuthern elevation is coverad with stucco.

No. 330. [Tax Map Block 106, Leots 1001~1010)]
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also designed ky William Kuhler, this five-story brick building was
eracted in 1832 ard is almest identical to Nos. 324-328. Originally owied
by J.S. Saultz, this buildirg was designed to accord with the facade at No.
32¢-328. ‘The sguare-headsd wirdows have cne-¢ver—cne, dot.ble—nm:g retal
sash. A Romenesque-inspired corkeled brick roof cornice unites koth
buildirgs. The expcsed northern elevaticn is covered with stuceo.

.. 334=-336. [Tax Map Block 106, Lot 20)

The pair of five-story btﬁ_ldings whizh onca stocd on this sita warz
demolished in 1958. It is now cccupied by a parking lot.

No. 338. [Tax Map Block 106, Lot 22)
This site is described urder 2-14 Dover Street.

PECK SLIP tetween Pearl and Water Streets.
Peck Slip is paved with Belgian blocks.
NORTH SIDE ONLY

Nes. 1-1% (260-262 Watar Street). [Tax Map Block 106, Lot 19}

Eleven huildirgs, one of whicnh was weed frame, steed on this site at
least until 1910 (illus. 2). The prasent six-story brick ard concrete
struchure with steel sash was ersctad in 1950 frcm the cesigns of Charles M.
Spirdier as the Peck Slip Staticn, U.S. Post Office. The three major
facades of the building are covered with louvered alumifmm screen. The
original wall surfaces are still visibls whers they erclese the parking lot
at No. 322 Pear] Street.

WATER STREET between Feck Slip and Dover Street.

Vater Strest is paved with Belglan blecks.
WZST SIDE ONLY
No. 26G-262. ([Tax Map Block 106, Lot 19].

This building is descrited under 1-19 Feck Slip.
Mos. 264-25§. [(Tax Map Blcck 108, Zot 7)

Two small kuildirgs stood on this site by the 1820s. These early
cuildirgs ray be incorporated in the present single Erick huilding which wes
raised from four to six stories in 1885-86. The facade of this building
dates campletely frem this later alteration. The building is three bays
wide and has a centar section with four windows, flanked cn either side by
two narrower bays. These bays are defined by full-height pilasters with
metal capitals at alternate flcors. ‘I"ne wirdcws are squars-neaded with one-
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cver-cre, cdouble-hung metal rsplacerent sash. At the grourd flcor the casc-
iren front displays reeded squara columns.,  Akove a handseme corkel table,
a deeply projecting mcdillioned roof cermice crowns the building., A porticn
of the northern elszvation faced with brick and punctuated by windew
ogenings, is visikble aktove the rcof of the adjzcent huildirg.

Mo. 263. [Tax Mzp Block 106, Lot 6)

This small three-story structure contrasts sirikirgly with the taller
puildings in this pleck. Cating from 1823-24, it was originally cwned by
© Ezra Hoyt, a stove ranufacturer. The ground fleor has keen substantially
altered but still reveals the paneled cast-iron square colurms of the mid-
19th century storefront. The urper stories, in Flemicsh bkond brickwork, are
characteristically Federal in style and have six-over-six deouble~hung woed
sash wirdeows with simple stone sills ard lintels. At eitter side of thess
windows, the gudgeors for the iron shutters ars still visible. The tcothed
ard dentilled brick pattern of the roof cornice, a later additicn, gives a
lively enrichment to the facade.

No. 270. (Tax Map Blcck 106, Lot 3]

Erected between 1836 ard 1840, this five=-story brick building is a
characteristic Greel: Revival warghcuse. large granite piers flank the three
ground ficor copenirgs and support a simpie granite architrave with cornice.
Paneled deuble deors at the northermmosit bay lead to the upper floors. In
keeping with the stardard Greek Revival design, the tall windews of the
second story centrast with the shorter ones at the upper steries. All the
windows are square-headed with two-over-two, double-hung woeden sash., A
corbeled brick roof cornice, with fascia, crowns the facade., A granite
trough, which once carried off the rain water .of the devmspout frem the rain
gutter at the roof, remains at sidewalk level in front of the building as
dees its granite stocp and vauwlt apron. A portion of the southern
elevaticn, faced with stucco, is visible abeve the roof of the adjacent

milm - - L4
Mos. 272, 274, 276. (Tax Map Block 106, Lot 2]

Originally two structures were located at No. 272 arnd crn2 at No. 274—
each three stories in height. The present twin five-story warshcusas wers
constrictad in 1367. The cast-iron stcrefronts, with ITtaliante detail
characteristic of the peried, ars particularly hardsoms. Panelesd cast-iron
square columns with large deccrative motifs at mid-neight support broad
openings with fiat arches curved at the erds. At the upper steries of No.
272, many of the shest metal lintels, with egg-and—dart moldings, rsmain, a3
do the metal sills set on ormate iron brackets. The origiral wirdews remain
2t MNo. 272 ard arz wocden four-over-four, deoubls-hurng s&sh. The wide
cantral muntin was designed to give the windeows the appeararce of 2
casarent, a feature of the Italianate style. The wirdcows of Ne. 274
urdoubtedly once had similar lintels and sills. The simple medillioned metal
rcof cornice remains only at No. 274. The sidewalk in front of No. 274
consists of bluestore flagying and Belgian blcck. Demolition of a kuildirg
at No. 276 has exposed the northeen elevaticn of No. 274. It is brick
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partially covered thh stucco. The vacamnt lot at No. 276 shares ha tet lot
with No. 274. ,

Report preparad by James T, DJ._lcn,
Research Department .

' Edited by Marjorie Dearson, -
Director of Research Capariment

'memfomtimcmrtamedinthisreportlsadaptadmpart‘frmlm,-

M@__Mwm (Wew York,

1977) .

.For a paradigm of the landfill paftem in the Seaport consalt:

Professional Service Industries, Inc.,"The Archasolcgical Irvestigation
of the 175 Water Street Bicck, New York City," report preparsd for HRO

Intermational, Tower 56, 125 East 56th Strest, New York, N,Y., 10022.

This report is ava..lab?e at the Landmarks Freservaticn Coermissicn.

George Wilson, Fortrait Gallery of the Chamber of Commerce cf the
State of New~York, (New York, 1380) 28-30.

Mary L. Booth, Historv of the Citv of Ne i, (New York, 1860),
384-3aS,

Unless notad in the text, all the sidewalks ars corcrete and thz
streets are paved with asphalk.



FRIDINGS AND DESIGNATICNS

On the pasis of a careful consideration of the history, the
architecture and other fezatwras of this Extansion to the Scuth Strest
Seaport Historic District, the Lardmarks Preservation Commission finds thet
the Socuth Street Seaport Historic District Extension {Tax Map Block 106}
along with' tha Scuth Street Seaport Historic District, have a special
charactar and special historical intarest arnd value which wepresent ore or
more pericds or styles of architecture typical of cne cr more eras in the
history of New York City arnd which cause this area, by reason of these
factors, to constitute a distinct section of the City.

The Camission further firnds that the South Strest Seaport Historic
District Extension contains buildings which span the 18th century from e
early 1820s to the mid-1880s, the pericd of the East River port‘s greatest
growth and development, the pericd when it was the most important shipping
center in the nation; that the Historic District ard the Extension comprisa
the surviving elements of this port: that the buildings in the Extensicn are
simple, utilitarian structurses reflecting their original uses as warencuses,
lofts, ard comrersial storage sepaces; that the buildings also represent
important phases in the evolution of the city’s ccmmercial architecture from
the house/store type of the early 1%th century, to the warshcuses of the
GreeX Revival pericd with their granite piers, to the larger masunry and
cast-iren warshouses of the mid to late 19th.century; that the Extensicn is
associated historically with figures prominent in the commerxcial develogment
of the city and, as such, shares a comron history with the designated
District; that within the Extension some of the streets are paved with
Belgian bleck, a lsth-centwry paving material found in many of the strests
within the Historic District: that its buildirngs are cf the same era, in the
sare scale ard height, and of the same materials as the buildings within the
desigriatad District; that these kuildings form a ssamless fabric with the
District and enhance its rhysical integrity and architectaral cchesiveness:
ard that the integrity of the Extensien with the Historic District is
further enhanced by the clear and distinct bourndaries formed Ly the
Southbridge apartrent complex cn its west arxi by the Breoklyn Bridge on the
north, and as seen from the Brooklyn Bridge the Extension is an
indistinguishable part of thes fabric of the South Street Seaport Historic
District. ' '

Recordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 21, Ssctiosn 534, of
the Charter of the City of New York ard Chapter 3 of Title 25 of the
Acninistrative Code of the City of New Yeork, the Landmarks Presaxvation
Cormiszicn designates as an Extensicon to the Scuth Street Seaport Historic
District, Borcugh of Manhattan, the property bounded by a lire beginning at
the scutheast cormer 0f the intersaction of Fearl Strast and Cover Strest,
excerding easterly along the scuthern curb line of Dover Styeet, scutherly
alorng the middle cf Watsr Street, westerly aleng the middle cf Peck Slip,
noxtherly acress Fack Slip to the eastemn curb lire of Pearl Street, ard
northerly along the eastern curb line of Fearl Street to the point of
begiming. , : o
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